
   CITY OF NEW MEADOWS  

PLANNING & ZONING MEETING 

WEDNESDAY SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 7PM 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 401 VIRGINIA STREET, NEW MEADOWS 

AM  Page 1 of 8 

 

 

Agenda Item 1) Welcome & Roll Call 
Chair Person Marsha Shriver opened the Planning & Zoning Meeting at 7:01PM.  Commissioners; Marsha Shriver, Jack Hellbusch, 
Brandy Padgett, Debbie Stuart, and Martin Tushkowski were present.  City Clerk/Treasurer Mac Qualls and Office Assistant Angie 
Moore were also present.  Public in attendance:  See Attachment 

 
Agenda Item 2) Public Hearing:  The Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of New Meadows will hold a public hearing 
concerning a Zone Change Application and Conditional Use Permit for a 3.34 acre parcel of property on South End Road to operate 
a Recycling / Reclamation business in New Meadows.  
 

a) Public Hearing Opened at 7:04pm 
Chair Person Shriver stated that there will be a timer and that each person will have 5 minutes to speak and there will be no 
background noise allowed and that the first time you will be asked to quit and the second time you will be asked to leave. 
 
b) Applicant Presentation 
Commissioner Stuart stated that before the public hearing starts she would like to bring to Mr. Brown’s attention Stuart 
asked if Mr. Brown had received paperwork when he arrived.  Mr. Brown stated that he received an agenda.  Stuart asked if 
Mr. Brown received the applicant check list.  Stuart stated she did not have a problem with the project and that the only 
issues she has is that legally before the Planning & Zoning Commission can approve the permits the salvage yard check list 
has to be completed.  Mr. Brown stated that he has the information in his presentation.  Stuart then asked if Mr. Brown was 
aware that before he can start his salvage business it could cost him anywhere between $100,000 to $600,000 just to meet 
the DEQ requirements.  Mr. Brown responded that he was not aware of that.  Mr. Brown stated that if he could give his 
presentation it will cover some of Stuart’s concerns. 
 
Mr. Brown stated that he would like to read a couple things before he starts his presentation.  First he read Brown’s 
Recycling Business statement; realizing there is never a perfect place to site some businesses we feel we have worked 
tirelessly to come up with a site that is least intrusive for most of the history of New Meadows.  Having found a spot that we 
feel is appropriate our plan is to design the site for a very successfully working model for recycling and recovery of useable 
parts of equipment as well as vehicles and dealing with them in a safe and appropriate manner to protect the environment 
and protect our city.  Our plan is to model our layout after our partners in business United Metals of Caldwell.  This means 
capturing and recovering of all fluids from vehicles and equipment and dealing with them in a safe and appropriate manner 
to protect the environment and the overall safety of our operation.  We will be dealing with batteries, flammable material, 
and very infrequently possible small amounts of hazardous material.  These products will be dealt with in a safe and 
professional manner; the fluids will be removed by an appropriate handler of this material two of the businesses that have 
been referred to Mr. Brown are Thermo Fluids of Boise and Gem Fluids of Boise.  Mr. Brown stated that Brown’s Recycling 
will be buying everything from aluminum cans to large equipment and anticipate creating 2-3 jobs in New Meadows.   
 
Mr. Brown stated that he was provided a checklist to ensure he had everything he needed to present at the meeting and 
that the checklist was provided by city staff.   
 
Mr. Brown stated that the property has been surveyed and that the property is 3.43 acres.  Brown also stated the project 
does not encroach on the creek.  Brown then went on to explain his aerial view map of property lines.   
 
c) Public Testimony 

i. Written comments received were read 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   CITY OF NEW MEADOWS  

PLANNING & ZONING MEETING 

WEDNESDAY SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 7PM 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 401 VIRGINIA STREET, NEW MEADOWS 

AM  Page 2 of 8 

 

ii. Supporter Testimony  
 

Kenneth Roark - 407 South Morgan – Mr. Roark testified he has been with Brown’s for about a year and a half now 
doing this kind of work collecting materials from anybody that will give it to them.  He stated he has been approached 
many times and asked what they do with this old scrap iron.  He explained the county dump won’t take because they 
don’t know what to do with it.  Mr. Roark stated the county sends them to Mr. Brown and they put it on a truck and ship 
it off.  Mr. Roark testified he has purchased a home here and works steady year around.  They purchase parts, scrap 
or whatever their customers are willing to get rid of.  He spends his money here, a lot of people come around and buy 
parts, scrap, or whatever they want to get, give us, or sell.  Mr. Roark testified that he and Mr. Brown have dealt with 
quite a few people in the room in a way of cars or brining scrap iron bringing to us. Mr. Roark plans on living here for 
quite a few years. Mr. Roark stated this is his life and his job.  Mr. & Mrs. Brown have been nothing but good for him.  
Mr. Roark stated that both of Mr. Brown’s boys are top of the line and own businesses here.  He hopes to grow in this 
business.  Mr. Roark stated he will be running a big part of the business himself, just as he has been out at the 
applicant’s home.  He stated he takes care of loading trucks, caring for the equipment, traveling, and working with 
them not just for them.  He stated he hopes this goes through because a lot of people depend on it.   
 
Fred McFadden - 216 South Heigho Avenue – Mr. McFadden stated he is in favor of the project but that he didn’t 
want to speak at this time. 
 
Heath Yelton - 200 South Morgan Avenue – Mr. Heath explained he grew up here, lived here his whole life and 
many know him.  Mr. Yelton explained he used to have a business here.  He explained Mr. Brown is one person in the 
Brown Family.  He stated that the Browns have lent a hand to any who have needed help.  There was a time when he 
was in need and Mr. Brown helped him out.  He believes Mr. Brown runs a really reputable business and doesn’t see 
why anybody has a problem with it.  Parts that a person might need are not always affordable.  It’s a lot easier to 
purchase used parts.  Mr. Yelton stated when people need a little extra cash, many have scrap metal can be taken 
locally instead of spending all of their money going to the valley.  He explained he is all for this project and expressed 
his thanks. 
 
Greg Gregersen – Southend Road – Mr. Greggerson stated he was an outsider but has been in the community for 
13 years.  He’s survived the fire of just about everything that can be thrown.  He is an independent combat warrior and 
believes its freedom of speech as long as you don’t say too much.  He supports this project because he’s the one that 
has to drive down Southend Road to go to and from his house.  He explained JI Morgan’s property looks bad.  He’s 
been to two town hall meetings and they have both been in conjunction with Bill Brown and what he is trying to 
accomplish.  He questioned the commission on whether they had had a meeting for the Family Dollar, a billion dollar 
corporation that is coming and he asked how long that took for approval. 
 
Chairperson Shriver stated it took several months and it went through every jot and tittle and over everything.  They 
gave the commission everything they requested and in fact they have went over and above. 
 
Mr. Gregersen stated will if you’re a billion dollar corporation you can just go in wherever you want. 
 
Shriver stated, “No you can’t”. 
 
Mr. Gregersen stated, “they do.”  
 
Shriver stated they were not allowed to do that.  They were not allowed to run all over the commission.  They had to 
go through the same process any other business does.  Shriver agreed they had money behind them but they did not 
get any more concessions than anyone else in this community concerning New Meadows. 
 
Mr. Gregersen asked if there were minutes to that effect. 
 



   CITY OF NEW MEADOWS  

PLANNING & ZONING MEETING 

WEDNESDAY SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 7PM 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 401 VIRGINIA STREET, NEW MEADOWS 

AM  Page 3 of 8 

 

 
Shriver stated, “yes there is sir.” 
 
Mr. Gregersen stated he would like to see some copies of the minutes. 
 
Shriver stated she believed he could come into City Hall and request a copy of them. 
 
Mr. Gregersen stated he believes if someone local is trying to do something it is better as compared to keeping fast 
food out the corporation business out.  He stated he moved here because he thought this place was paradise.  He has 
lived in places where he went to bed every night with automatic weapons fired, sirens going off and everything else.  
He explained he was talking about this country not in foreign country.  So this is a piece of paradise that he wants to 
enjoy and he can’t leave.  He has commitments and honestly believes that.  He asked how many meetings the 
Planning & Zoning Commission has.  Shriver stated the Planning & Zoning Commission has one meeting a month and 
if the City Council deems it necessary to have more, the commission will have more.   
 
Johnny Brown Sr – Mr. Johnny Brown Sr stated all he was going to say was Bill is his little brother and he has known 
him forever and he didn’t understand why people are down on him because they don’t understand what he does for 
this county and he guesses they never will.  He said he was completely for this project. 
 
Ken Patrick – 3100 Highway 55 – Mr. Patrick stated that everybody in town knows him one way or another.  He 
explained that he has known Bill for almost 20 years.  His sons, his family, like Mr. Yelton said, if someone has ever 
got their butt in a jam they can go to them and get help one way or another.  He stated they have never done anything 
but the best they can for the community.  He stated that he didn’t understand why people are letting their petty 
differences – petty spiteful things – get in the way of helping the community.   
 
Mr. Patrick agreed with Mr. Yelton who said we need parts here.  He stated that we need somewhere to make a little 
revenue because come winter time, when half of the people are out of work because they are in construction or 
logging, they do what they can to make a living.  Mr. Patrick stated that some people may look down on him and some 
people might have things say.  He stated that some people are back biting individuals.  He stated that he didn’t 
understand why people can’t come together as a community and help each other and put their petty differences aside.  
He stated that he didn’t understand why madam commissioner – it’s none of her business whether or not Mr. Brown 
has the money.  If he does have the money they will let it pass as long as he complies with every single thing that the 
EPA commission and the state requires.  He stated that he didn’t see what the problem is other than a person is 
getting in the way because of petty differences.  He expressed the need to pull together more and the need to help 
each other more.   
 
Mr. Patrick stated that he didn’t know if everyone had looked around lately, but he thought it’s stupid that the city is 
putting sidewalks in and not fixing the plumbing, water/sewer and meters.  He explained that he doesn’t think we need 
sidewalks.  He stated that the city needs good plumbing; good sewage and then we need to make sure we have 
paved roads and then we can put some sidewalks in.  He stated that he didn’t know anyone who is walking on the 
sidewalks come mid-January.  He asked if there was money to shovel them.  I asked if anyone wanted to volunteer 
time for this.  He stated that we spend time doing everything we can to stop Bill brown from helping this community 
when he does more than anyone in this community knows.  He stated that Mr. Brown provided jobs for half this town – 
at least in the last 20 years.  He state he has known him and can see three to four people that have worked for him 
and have been happy to have the work.  He stated that he didn’t understand what the problem was.  He stated that he 
was completely for the project.  Mr. Patrick stated the three full time jobs could help so that people can make it, 
himself included.   
 
 
 
 



   CITY OF NEW MEADOWS  

PLANNING & ZONING MEETING 

WEDNESDAY SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 7PM 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 401 VIRGINIA STREET, NEW MEADOWS 

AM  Page 4 of 8 

 

 
Mr. Patrick stated everyone knows where he lives and he keeps his place clean but every chance he gets he does a 
truck load of scrap.  If he can make a hundred dollars, well, that helps pay the electric bill.  He stated that he didn’t 
know who has a problem paying the electric bill.  He asked – “What is that problem?”  He stated that Mr. Brown 
employs three to four people and makes it so a few more people can make a couple bucks or so they can go buy a 
part so they can make it to work the following day.  He explained that it costs a hundred and fifty dollars for a starter, 
but Bill’s got one that can be purchased for twenty dollars and he needs that to get to work tomorrow and he has 
twenty dollars.  Or he doesn’t have twenty dollars but says to Bill – “I need a starter, so I can get my butt to work 
tomorrow.”  Ok, Kenny, here you go. 
 
Bill Moats – 315 North Cunningham Avenue – Mr. Moats stated that he thought he heard virtually everything that 
needed to be said and he said thank you.  He stated that he’s lived here for just over 42 years.  He stated that a lot of 
people find a place like New Meadows as a shelter where they can be all laid back and don’t have to deal with 
change, hoping  that no one bothers them about doing this, that and the other.  He stated that when you take on that 
mindset, nothing positive happens.  He stated that he thinks there are a lot of people here who have made their own 
choices in their life.  Those people have recently been spending their valuable time to make less of Mr. Brown when 
they should be trying to make more of themselves and he expressed that he thinks that is enough and thanked the 
commission. 
 
Ricky Brown – 509 South Miller Avenue – Mr. Ricky Brown stated that as he looked over the audience, he felt like a 
lot of what was going on was prejudice toward Bill Brown in a sense.  Mr. Brown stated that as he looked at the 
audience, he felt there were many there that his dad had held an account for or helped out in one way or another 
since he was a little child.  Those were interest free accounts.  He stated that his dad had helped the community 
through the time he was born and raised, went to school, bled for this community, bled for this count and worked as a 
public servant at an ungrateful job for 19 years.  He agreed that yes, he has made some enemies.  He stated that yes, 
he has pissed a few of those present off but it’s a job where you can’t please everyone.  If you please fifty percent of 
the people, you are doing a good job.  Mr. Brown stated that he didn’t understand why this wrecking yard, or whatever 
it is that they were are doing here, is unacceptable when ABT Towing was able to bring the exact same vehicles to the 
exact same yard, totally wrecked and leaking fluids when they pulled them into their yard with no scrutiny.  Here is Bill 
Brown trying to do the same thing that was already there.  Some people have got backwards in this community with 
him one way or another and Mr. Brown felt this is a vendetta sort of thing rather than asking should this business be 
there or not.  He expressed that the Planning and Zoning Commission has to look past all of that and recognize that 
they are trying to rezone this property back to what it was already before – where it already is.  Mr. Brown stated that if 
you drove down South End Road four years ago before Morgan scrapped all their stuff, it was a scrap yard from the 
point you pulled off the highway until you passed Larry Glenn’s house; it was a scrap yard all the way down there.  
These are the exact same things Mr. Brown is trying to do.  He stated that he felt this community is ungrateful for what 
his dad has done for the community and what he does for the county.  He stated that somebody who has lived in this 
community, bled for this community and is trying to open a new business for this community which everyone could 
benefit from if they want to buy or sell scrap metal without having to drive a hundred miles or more.  They could do it 
locally and keep more money here locally.  Mr. Brown stated that he felt that people need to put their own little 
vendettas aside and look at the business, not the business owner.  He stated that all of those at Brown’s, including 
himself, since taking over the business in 2006, all they have done is to help people when they are in need.  They 
extend them in interest free account to help them out, including him. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   CITY OF NEW MEADOWS  

PLANNING & ZONING MEETING 

WEDNESDAY SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 7PM 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 401 VIRGINIA STREET, NEW MEADOWS 

AM  Page 5 of 8 

 

 
Mark Peterson – Southend Road – Mr. Peterson explained that he’s been through the Planning and Zoning process 
himself and hearing the comments to date, before you can do anything with DEQ, EPA, Don Horton and the building 
permit (what size building do you want to build), you have to get a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to start the process.  
He stated that with the rumors he’d heard he can’t believe how many meetings they were hung up on getting the CUP 
because the ball doesn’t start rolling until that is done.  He stated that he believed that DEQ, EPA and Southwest 
District Health will come into play after the CUP is issued.  The CUP is just that conditional use pertaining to meeting 
the letter of the law today, tomorrow and next year.  He stated that he knows because he participates with that every 
day.  Being a small business owner in the community and further more being an adjoining property owner with Bill 
Brown where he currently resides and driving South End Road at least twice a day going to work and going back 
home, he stated that to get it off the ground, he is in favor of the proposed operation on South End road.  He 
expressed that like anyone else they must comply with the CUP and regulatory agencies in the future.  He expressed 
that first hand, he would rather drive by and sees what somebody is doing than to have it sheltered so he can’t.  He 
stated that he has no reason to doubt Bill Brown when he says what it is that he is going to make happening.  In his 
business career to date, that has happened.  Thank you very much. 
 
iii. Neutral Testimony 

 
Darby Edwards - 416 South Heigho Ave – Mr. Edwards stated that he didn’t know Mr. Brown before that night but 
he knew his son.  He questioned whether the check list of the DEQ prerequisites was the city’s responsibility.  He 
stated that might be kind of a rhetorical question.  He stated that he wasn’t sure that announcing Mr. Brown’s abilities 
financial obligations prior to his address at this meeting was in order.  He stated that this isn’t a DEQ inquisition, it’s a 
move for a zoning change.  He stated that if Mr. Brown fails to comply, he will deal with that appropriately and that 
they need to focus on what they are looking at  just a zoning change and from what he had heard that night he said 
why not. 
 
Nicki Brown – Southend Road – Ms. Brown asked where all the concerned people where when ABT didn’t give a 
crap what was in the creek or when it looked like crap?  She stated that someone could have put up a fence.  She 
stated that she didn’t get why are losing so much sleep over what someone else is doing when they should stay on 
their own door and not worry about what their neighbor is doing.  She expressed that it looked like crap when it was 
ABT.  She explained that she was trying to understand if the meeting is for them to decide if he can put his business 
there or is it for the zoning or if people living in their houses looking down get to decide. 
 
Chairperson Shriver stated that the committee is a thankless, unpaid committee that catches grief from every side but 
they try their best to go by the ordinances that have been provided and they have gone through by vote of the City 
Council therefore they go by what the ordinances say.  Then they pass it on to the City Council. 
   

iv. Opponent Testimony 
 

Mike Howard – Southend Road – Mr. Howard said he was thankful for the opportunity to speak.  He stated that he 
came to protest against the project, not Bill Brown himself, but the project.  He stated that he has known Bill Brown for 
some 34 years and Mr. Brown has been nothing but eye to eye with Mr. Howard on every conversation they have ever 
had and he appreciated that.  He stated that Bill is a good politician and he has said things Mr. Howard had wanted to 
hear.  They may not have turned out but he tried.  He stated that he is not opposed to Bill Brown.  He stated the he 
loves him and his family.  He explained that he is opposed to the project being in the location that it is because (and 
he stated that he knew he would correct this) because when Shanna Barnett was killed, her car was parked beside the 
side of the road for days and days before it was covered.  It was finally covered but for those that live out South End 
Road, including her parents, they drove past her vehicle day after day.  Mr. Howard stated that that’s the vision in his 
mind and he’s fearful of that.  He expressed that they need all the help they can get at the school, all the kids, the 
teacher, the jobs, etc.  He stated that he is just against this project there.   

 



   CITY OF NEW MEADOWS  

PLANNING & ZONING MEETING 

WEDNESDAY SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 7PM 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 401 VIRGINIA STREET, NEW MEADOWS 

AM  Page 6 of 8 

 

 
Wes Jeffs – 409 North Cunningham Avenue – There are preconstruction requirements with the EPA that have to be 
met before any dirt can be moved.  So there are things that have already been done that shouldn’t have.  Mr. Brown in 
good faith should have presented that list to you before he even came in and asked for this kind of stuff.  Rather than 
telling the commission to call somebody.  Mr. Jeffs testified Mr. Brown should be presenting that to the commission.  
Mr. Jeffs stated Mr. Brown has not complied in a lot of areas.  Mr. Jeffs felt there was no reason to make this zone 
change right now.  Mr. Jeffs testified the application should be tabled..   
 
v. Rebuttal by applicant 

Mr. Brown stated he is starting with a blank slate on the property and that he loves the valley and feels like he has 
ownership within this valley just as much as anyone else.  Mr. Brown also stated that he will have large containers to hold 
the fluids that will have to be drained and a large cement pad for the items that people bring out to be dumped on so that it 
can be sorted.  Brown said he doesn’t remember the last time that property flooded but will make sure things are done 
appropriately the way it should be done.  Inventory will be done in a computer.  Browns stated that he was given the Best 
Practices checklist and that the commission was welcome to contact any of the names listed on the paper provided.  Mr. 
Brown stated that he listened to his community and found a better location for his business.   
 

vi. Close Public Hearing – or staying the closing of the public hearing to allow additional written comments to be 
submitted until a date to be determined by the commission. 

• Commissioner Hellbusch moved to close the public hearing; Commissioner Stuart seconded the motion.  Voice vote 
indicated not opposition to the motion with all members signifying aye.  Motion carried. 
 
The public hearing closed at 8:31pm. 
 

Agenda Item 3) Recommendation & Discussion:  The Planning & Zoning Commission is to make a recommendation for approval 
of the application or denial of the application to the New Meadows City Council on the zone change from Residential 3 to Industrial 
on the South End Road location. 

•••• Commissioner Tushkowski moved to approve the application to change the zoning from Residential 3 to Industrial at 
the South End Road location and send it to New Meadows City Council.  Commissioner Hellbusch seconded the 
motion.  Voice vote indication no opposition to the motion with all members signifying aye.  Motion carried. 

 
Agenda Item 4) Recommendation & Discussion:  The Planning & Zoning Commission is to make a recommendation for approval 
of the application or denial of the application to the New Meadows City Council on the Conditional Use Application to operate a 
Recycling / Reclamation business in New Meadows at the South End Road location. 
 
After much discussion amongst the Planning & Zoning Commission they asked to have some additional time to put together the 
conditions for the Conditional Use Permit and will meet on October 7, 2014. 

•••• Commissioner Hellbusch moved to table their decision on the Conditional Use Permit and meet on October 7, 2014 
with their conditions.  Commissioner Tushkowski seconded the motion.  Voice vote indication no opposition to the 
motion with all members signifying aye.  Motion carried. 
 

Agenda Item 5) Zoning Map Change:  The New Meadows City Council has assigned to the New Meadows Planning & Zoning 
Commission the task of changing the zoning designation on North Norris Avenue to the “Central Business District” designation from 
“General Commercial District”. 

•••• Commissioner Hellbusch moved to leave the zoning of North Norris Avenue as General Commercial District.  
Commissioner Tushkowski seconded the motion.  Voice vote indication no opposition to the motion with all members 
signifying aye.  Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 



   CITY OF NEW MEADOWS  

PLANNING & ZONING MEETING 

WEDNESDAY SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 7PM 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 401 VIRGINIA STREET, NEW MEADOWS 

AM  Page 7 of 8 

 

 
Agenda Item 6) Design Review modifications: The New Meadows City Council has assigned the New Meadows Planning & 
Zoning Commission the task of modifying the Design Review Criteria for new commercial structures. 

•••• Commissioner Tushkowski moved to remove the word architectural drawing from the proposed change to the Zoning 
amendment.  Commissioner Stuart seconded the motion.  Voice vote indicated no opposition to the motion with all 
members signifying aye.  Motion carried. 

 
Agenda Item 7) Adjourn 

•••• Chairperson Shriver moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Hellbusch seconded the motion.  Voice vote 
indication no opposition to the motion with all members signifying aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:00 pm. 

 

 
OFFICIAL:   ________________ ______                ATTEST: _________________________               
        Jack Hellbusch, Co-Chair         Jacob Qualls, City Clerk         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   CITY OF NEW MEADOWS  

PLANNING & ZONING MEETING 

WEDNESDAY SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 7PM 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 401 VIRGINIA STREET, NEW MEADOWS 

AM  Page 8 of 8 

 

Attachment A 

 


